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-against- DE ARE

T-MOBILE USA INC., and JOHN DOES #1-10,

Jointly and Severally
; LEVY. M.J.

Defendants.

X

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Plaintiffs MIGUEL AGUI (“A gui”), ALEXANDER REYES (“Reyes™), and
JAMES GIPSON (“Gipson” and collectively with Agui and Reyes, the “Plaintiffs”) allege, on
behalf of themselves and all other similarly situated current and former employees of the
Defendants who elect to opt into this action pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act
(“FLSA™), 29 U.S.C. §§ 216(b), that they are: (i) entitled to unpaid wages from defendants T-
MOBILE USA INC. (“T-MOBILE” or the “Corporate Defendant) and JOHN DOES #1-10
(the “Individual Defendants” and, collectively with T-Mobile, the “Defendants™) for work

performed for which they received no compensation at all; (ii) unpaid wages for overtime work
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for which they did not receive overtime premium pay, as required by law, and (iii) entitled to
liquidated damages, costs and attorneys fees pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §§201 et seq.

2. Plaintiffs further complain on behalf of themselves and a class of all other
similarly situated current and former employees of the Defendants, pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P.
23, that they are entitled to wages from Defendants for work performed for which they
received no compensation at all as well as for overtime work for which they did not receive
overtime premium pay, as required by New York Labor Law §§ 650 et seq., including Part
142, § 142-2.2 (“Overtime Rate”) of Title 12 of the Official Compilation of Codes, Rules and
Regulations promulgated by the Commissioner of Labor pursuant to the Minimum Wage Act
(Article 19 of the New York State Labor Law).

3. Plaintiffs further complain on behalf of themselves and a class of all other
similarly situated current and former employees of the Defendants, pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P.
23, that they are entitled to wages from Defendants for work performed for which they
received no compensation at all as well as for overtime work for which they did not receive
overtime premium pay, as required by California Labor Code and related regulations, Cal.
Labor Code §§ 201, 202, 203, 218.5, 226, 226.7, 510,512, 1174, 1174.5, and 1194, Cal. Wage
Order No. 4 (collectively, the “California Wage Laws”).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§¢ 1331 and 1337, 1343, and supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ state law claims
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367. In addition, the Court has Jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ claims
under the FLSA pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

4, Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391.
2
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5. This Court is empowered to issue a declaratory judgment pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

§§ 2201 and 2202.

THE PARTIES
6. Plaintiffs Agui and Reyes were, at all relevant times, adult individuals residing
in Brooklyn, New York.
7. Plaintiff Gipson was, at all relevant times, an adult individual, residing in Los

Angeles, California.

8. Upon information and belief, Defendant T-Mobile USA Inc. is a foreign
corporation authorized to do business within the States of New York and California with
operating facilities in this district and throughout the United States. T-Mobile USA Inc. is the
US operating entity of T-Mobile International AG, the mobile communications subsidiary of
Deutsche Telekom AG.

9. Upon information and belief, John Does #1-10 represent the officers, directors
and/or managing agents of the Corporate Defendant, whose identities are unknown at this time
and who participated in the day-to-day operations of the Corporate Defendants and acted
intentionally and maliciously and are “employers” pursuant to the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §203(d)
and regulations promulgated thereunder, 29 C.F.R. §791.2, as well as the New York Labor
Law Sec. 2 and the regulations thereunder, as well as the California Wage Order No. 4 and the
regulations thereunder and are jointly and severally liable with the Corporate Defendant.

COLLECTIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS

10. Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §207, Plaintiffs seek to prosecute their FLSA claims as a

collective action on behalf of all persons who are or were formerly employed by Defendants

since July 10, 2006 to the entry of judgment in this case (the “Collective Action Period”), who
3
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were non-exempt employees within the meaning of the FLSA and who were not paid wages for
all hours worked and overtime compensation at rates not less than one and one-half times the
regular rate of pay for hours worked in excess of forty hours per workweek (the “Collective
Action Members”).

11, This collective action class is so numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. Although the precise number of such persons is unknown, and the facts on
which the calculation of that number are presently within the sole control of the Defendants,
upon information and belief, there are several thousand members of the collective action who
worked for Defendants during the Collective Action Period, most of whom would not be likely
to file individual suits because they lack adequate financial resources, access to attorneys or
knowledge of their claims.

12, Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Collective Action
Members and have retained counsel that is experienced and competent in the fields of
employment law and class action litigation. Plaintiffs have no interests that are contrary to or
in conflict with those members of this collective action.

13. A collective action is superior to other available methods for the fair and
efficient adjudication of this controversy, since joinder of all members is impracticable.
Furthermore, inasmuch as the damages suffered by individual Collective Action Members may
be relatively small, the expense and burden of individual litigation make it virtually impossible
for the members of the collective action to individually seek redress for the wrongs done to
them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a collective action.

14.  Questions of law and fact common to the members of the collective action

predominate over questions that may affect only individual members because Defendants have

4
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acted on grounds generally applicable to all members. Among the common questions of law
and fact common to Plaintiffs and other Collective Action Members are:

a. whether the Defendants employed the Collective Action members within the
meaning of the FLSA;

b. whether the Defendants failed to keep true and accurate time records for all
hours worked by Plaintiffs and the Collective Action Members;

¢. what proof of hours worked is sufficient where the employer fails in its duty
to maintain time records;

d. whether Defendants failed to pay the Collective Action Members wages for
all hours worked as well as overtime compensation for hours worked in
excess of forty hours per workweek, in violation of the FLSA and the
regulations promulgated thereunder;

¢. whether Defendants’ violations of the FLSA are willful as that term is used
within the context of the FLSA;

f. whether Defendants are liable for all damages claimed hereunder, including
but not limited to compensatory, punitive and statutory damages, interest,
costs and disbursements and attorneys’ fees; and

g. whether Defendants should be enjoined from such violations of the FLSA in
the future,

15.  Plaintiffs know of no difficulty that will be encountered in the management of
this litigation that would preclude its maintenance as a collective action.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

16. Plaintiffs sue on their own behalf, and on behalf of a class of persons under

5
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Rules 23(a), (b)(2) and (b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

17.  Plaintiffs bring their New York Labor Law claims on behalf of all persons who
were employed by Defendant at any time since July 10, 2003 to the entry of judgment in this
case (the “New York Class Period”), who were non-exempt employees within the meaning of
the New York Labor Laws and have not been paid wages and overtime wages in violation of
the New York Labor Laws (the “New York Class™).

18.  Plaintiffs bring their California Wage Law claims on behalf of all persons who
were employed by Defendant at any time since July 10, 2006 to the entry of judgment in this
case (the “California Class Period™), who were non-exempt employees within the meaning of
the California Wage Laws and have not been paid wages and overtime wages in violation of
the California Wage Laws (the “California Class™).

19.  The persons in the Class identified above are so numerous that joinder of all
members is impracticable. Although the precise number of such persons is unknown, and the
facts on which the calculation of that number are presently within the sole control of the
Defendant, upon information and belief, there are several thousand members of the Class
during the Class Period.

20.  The claims of Plaintiffs are typical of the claims of the Class, and a class action
is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the
controversy—particularly in the context of wage and hour litigation where individual plaintiffs
lack the financial resources to vigorously prosecute a lawsuit in federal court against corporate
defendants.

21.  The Defendants have acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to

the class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief

6
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with respect to the class as a whole.

22.  Plaintiffs have committed themselves to pursuing this action and they have
retained competent counsel experienced in employment law and class action litigation.

23.  Plaintiffs have the same interests in this matter as all other members of the class
and Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the Class.

24,  There are questions of law and fact common to the Class which predominate
over any questions solely affecting the individual members of the Class, including but not
limited to:

a. whether the Defendants employed the members of the Class within the meaning of

the New York Labor Laws and/or the California Wage Laws;

b. whether the Defendants failed to keep true and accurate time records for all hours
worked by Plaintiffs and members of the Class;

¢. what proof of hours worked is sufficient where employers fail in their duty to
maintain time records;

d. whether Defendants failed and/or refused to pay the members of the Class wages
for all hours worked including premium pay for hours worked in excess of forty
hours per workweek;

e. whether the Defendants are liable for all damages claimed hereunder, including but
not limited to compensatory, interest, costs and disbursements and attorneys’ fees;
and

f. whether the Defendants should be enjoined from such violations of the New York
Labor Laws and/or the California Wage Laws in the future.

STATEMENT OF FACTS
,
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25.  T-Mobile USA Inc. is the US operating entity of T-Mobile International AG,
the mobile communications subsidiary of Deutsche Telekom AG. T-Mobile is the fourth
largest mobile phone company, in terms of number of subscribers, in the United States with
approximately 33.2 million subscribers. T-Mobile employs approximately 36,000 employees
across the U.S.

26.  Mr. Agui was employed by T-Mobile as a Sales Representative from June 2007
through approximately October 2007, at which time he was promoted to Senior Sales
Representative/ Supervisor. During the period in which he worked as a Sales Representative,
from on or about June 2007 through October 2007, Mr. Agui was paid a wage of $10.00 per
hour plus a monthly commission based on sales volumes. During the period in which he
worked as a Supervisor, from on or about October 2007 through March 2009, Mr. Agui was
paid a wage of $12.00 per hour plus a monthly commission based on sales volumes.

27.  Mr. Reyes was employed by T-Mobile as a Sales Representative from January
2008 through approximately June 2008, at which time he was promoted to Senior Sales
Representative/ Supervisor. During the period in which he worked as a Supervisor, from on or
about June 2008 through April 2009, Mr. Reyes was paid a wage ranging from $11.00 to
$11.50 per hour plus a monthly commission based on sales volumes.

28.  Mr. Gipson was employed by T-Mobile as a Sales Representative from October
2005 through approximately March 2006, at which time he was promoted to Senior Sales
Representative/ Supervisor. During the period in which he worked as a Supervisor, from on or
about March 2006 through December 2008, Mr. Gipson was paid a wage ranging from $12.50
to $13.10 per hour plus a monthly commission based on sales volumes.

29.  Throughout the relevant time period, Plaintiffs were typically required to either
8
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Durmg this time, which would typically take approximately ten (10) minutes, Plaintiffs were
performing work for Defendants which was not being compensated. In addition, Plaintiffs were
told by their managers that it was mandatory that when opening the store, there must be at least
two employees present at all times. Plaintiffs were frequently required to arrive early and wait
for a second employee to arrive before they were allowed to begin store opening procedures.
As such, they were not able to log into the timekeeping system until after the second employee
arrived and they had completed opening procedures. Upon closing the store, Plaintiffs were
similarly required to perform “off the clock™ work for which they were not compensated after
logging out of Defendants’ timekeeping system.

30.  Throughout the relevant period, Plaintiffs were provided with a Company
Blackberty or other smart device and were required to review and respond to T-Mobile-related
emails and text messages at all hours of the day, whether or not they were punched into T-
Mobile’s computer-based timecard system. Plaintiffs were also required to take and place
telephone calls to other T-Mobile personnel and customers relating to store staffing, sales
and/or discounting of handsets, customer satisfaction concerns and other T- Mobile business.
Plaintiffs were also required to participate on frequent conference calls, typically at least one
time per week, when the store manager was unable to participate on the call. Plaintiffs were
frequently required to participate on such conference calls outside their normal forty (40) hour

work week and were not compensated for the time spent on the calls.

9
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31.  Throughout the relevant period, Plaintiffs typically had two days off of work per
week, but they were required to respond to emails, texts, phone calls, participate on conference
calls and to review T- Mobile materials on their days off of work and at times that they were
not "punched in” to the T- Mobile timesheet program. Because they weren’t punched into the
timesheet program, Plaintiffs did not receive regular wages or overtime compensation for work
performed. When Plaintiffs complained to the store managers regarding the issue, they were
told that there was nothing that could be done, and that they’d Just have to accept working the
extra hours as a part of T- Mobile’s standard business practices.

32.  While Plaintiffs were classified as non-exempt hourly employees, they were
typically required to spend 10-15 hours per week reviewing and responding to email, texts,
phone calls, participating on conference calls and studying/reviewing corporate docﬁments for
which they were not paid any compensation.

33, In addition to requiring T-Mobile sales associates, sales representatives and
supervisors to review and respond to emails and texts, to take and place telephone calls,
prepare schedules and to participate on conference calls, Plaintiffs were also required to review
large amounts of corporate information and to prepare for special events. Plaintiffs were
required 1o perform much of this work outside of their normally scheduled work hours and
received no compensation for work performed outside the store.

34.  Throughout the relevant period, Plaintiffs were required to give their T-Mobile
business cards, which listed their mobile phone number and email address, to customers.
Plaintiffs would typically receive telephone calls from customers throughout the week,
frequently when they were not at work and punched into the timekeeping system, requesting

information regarding the customers’ plans and phones. Plaintiffs were instructed by their

10
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managers to try to resolve customer problems over the phone, even when they were off the
clock and their time was not being recorded.

35. During the course of Plaintiffs’ employment, Defendants launched a product
known as “T-Mobile At Home.” This product frequently required home installation for
customers. Plaintiffs were required to travel to customer homes to deliver, install and
troubleshoot the products after they had had punched out at night. During this time, Plaintiffs
were not paid regular wages or overtime for work performed during the delivery and
installation of the “At Home” products.

36.  Throughout the relevant period, Plaintiffs frequently picked up lunch and
immediately returned to the T- Mobile store and continued to work throughout their “lunch
break,” notwithstanding the fact that a store manager frequently punched them out for at least a
30 minute “lunch period.”

37. Upon information and belief, Defendant T- Mobile employs approximately
thirty-two thousand employees and the over 1,000 company stores employed thousands of
sales associates, sales representatives and supervisors, who were similarly required to perform
“ofl the clock” opening and closing duties, review and respond to emails and text messages on
their PDAs, receive and place telephone calls from T- Mobile employees and customers,
participate on conference calls and review and prepare company materials for upcoming events
and releases, These T- Mobile employees similarly were not paid wages or overtime for hours
worked outside the store on company business, as required by the Fair Labor Standards Act.

38, Plaintiffs brings their FLSA claims on behalf of themselves and all similarly
situated persons who have worked for Defendants in non-exempt positions from July 10, 2006

through the date of the final judgment in this mater.
' 11
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39.  Plaintiffs were required to work for Defendants well in excess of forty (40)
hours per week, frequently requiring Plaintiffs to work from ten to fifteen (10-15) hours of
overtime per week without any additional regular or overtime compensation.

40.  Plaintiffs’ work was performed in the normal course of the Defendants’
business and was integrated into the business of Defendants.

41.  The work performed by Plaintiffs required little skill and no capital investment.

42.  Plaintiffs did not supervise other employees and their job duties did not include
managerial responsibilities or the exercise of independent business judgment.

43.  Plaintiffs often worked in excess of 40 hours a week, yet the Defendants
willfully failed to pay Plaintiffs’ compensation for hours worked in excess of forty hours per
week, including overtime compensation of one and one-half times their regular hourly rate in
violation of the FLSA, the New York Labor Laws, the supporting New York State Department
of Labor regulations, and California Wage Laws.

44.  In addition to the Plaintiffs, during the time period Defendants usually
employed tens of thousands of other similarly situated employees simultaneously.

45.  Throughout that time and, upon information and belief, both before that time
(throughout the Class Period) and continuing until today, the Defendants have likewise
employed other individuals, like the Plaintiffs (the Collective Action Members/the Class) in
positions that required little skill and no capital,

46.  Such individuals have worked in excess of 40 hours a week yet the Defendants
have likewise willfully failed to pay them for all hours worked as well as wages for overtime
compensation of one and one-half times their regular hourly rate, in violation of the FLSA, the

New York Labor Laws and California Wage Laws.
12
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47.  As stated, the exact number of such individuals is presently unknown but within
the sole knowledge of the Defendants and can be ascertained through appropriate discovery.

48,  Throughout all relevant time periods, upon information and belief, and during
the course of Plaintiffs’ own employment, while Defendants employed Plaintiffs and the
Collective Action Members/the Class, the Defendants routinely required Plaintiffs and the
Collective Action Members/the Class to work well in excess of forty (40) hours per week, yet
Defendants maintained a policy of not approving or paying for hours worked in excess of forty
hours per week.

49, Throughout all relevant time periods, upon information and belief, and during
the course of Plaintiffs’ own employment, while Defendants employed Plaintiffs and the
Collective Action Members/the Class, the Defendants failed to maintain accurate and sufficient
time records to reflect all of the hours that Plaintiffs and the Collective Action members/the
Class worked.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

50.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation of the preceding
paragraphs hereof with the same force and effect as though fully set forth herein.
51. At all relevant times Defendants have been and continue to be an employer
engaged in interstate commerce and/or the production of goods for commerce, within the
meaning of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 206(a) and 207(a).

52. At all relevant times, Defendants employed, and/or continues to employ,

Plaintiffs and each of the Collective Action Members within the meaning of the FLSA.

53. Upon information and belief, at all relevant times, the Corporate Defendants

13
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have had gross revenues well in excess of $500,006.00.

54.  Plaintiffs consent in writing to be a party to this action, pursuant to 29 U.S.C.
§216(b). The named Plaintiffs’ written consents are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference.

55. At all relevant times, the Defendants had a policy and practice of refusing to pay
wages for all hours worked as well as overtime compensation to its employees for their hours
worked in excess of forty hours per workweek.

56. As a result of the Defendants’ wiliful failure to compensate its employees,
including Plaintiffs and the Collective Action members, at a rate not less than one and one-half
times the regular rate of pay for work performed in excess of forty hours in a workweek, the
Defendants ha ve violate d, and continue to violate, the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201 et seq.,
including 29 U.S.C. §§ 207(a)(1) and 215(a).

57 As aresult of the Defendants’ failure to record, report, credit and/or compensate
its employees, including Plaintiffs and the Collective Action members, the Defendants have
failed to make, keep and preserve records with respect to each of its employees sufficient to
determine the wages, hours and other conditions and practices of employment in violation of
the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq., including 29 U.S.C. §§ 211(c) and 215(a).

58.  The foregoing conduct, as alleged, constitutes a willful violation of the FLSA
within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 255(a). Due to Defendants” FLSA violations, Plaintiffs, on
behalf of themselves and the Collective Action members, are entitled to recover from
Defendants their unpaid wages and overtime compensation, an additional amount equal as
liquidated damages. additional liquidated damages for unreasonably delayed payment of

wages. reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs and disbursements of this action, pursuant to 29

14
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U.S.C. § 216(b).

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
NEW YORK LABOR LAW

59.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation of the preceding
paragraphs hereof with the same force and effect as though fully set forth herein,

60. At all relevant times, Plaintiffs and the members of the Class were employed by
the Defendants within the meaning of the New York Labor Law, §§ 2 and 651.

61.  Defendants willfully violated Plaintiffs’ rights and the rights of the members of
the Class by failing to pay them compensation for all hours worked as well as overtime
compensation at rates not less than one and one-half times the regular rate of pay for each hour
worked in excess of forty hours in a workweek.

62.  The Defendants’ New York Labor Law violations have caused Plaintiffs and the
members of the Class irreparable harm for which there is no adequate remedy at law.

63. Due to the Defendants’ New York Labor Law violations, Plaintiffs and the
members of the Class are entitled to recover from Defendants their unpaid wages and unpaid
overtime compensation, damages for unreasonably delayed payment of wages, reasonabie
attorneys’ fees and costs and disbursements of the action, pursuant to New York Labor Law §
663(1) et al. Plaintiffs seek liquidated damages, pursuant to New York Labor Law § 663(1)
only in the alternative if the Class is not certified.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
Cal. Wage Order No. 4; Cal. Labor Code §§ 510, 1194
On behalf of the California Class
64.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations in all preceding

paragraphs.

15
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65.  Defendant has engaged in a widespread pattern, policy, and practice of violating
the California Cal. Wage Order No. 4; Cal. Labor Code §§ 510, 1194, as detailed in this Class
Action Complaint.

66.  California law requires employers, such as Defendants, to pay overtime
compensation to all non-exempt employees for all hours worked over forty per week, or over
cight hours per day.

67.  The California Class members are non-exempt employees entitled to be paid
overtime compensation for all overtime hours worked.

68.  Throughout the California Class Period, and continuing through the present, the
California Class members worked in excess of eight hours in a workday and/or forty hours in a
workweek.

69.  During the California Class Period, Defendant failed and refused to pay the
California Class members overtime premium pay for their overtime hours worked.

70.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ unlawful conduct, as set
forth herein, the California Class members have sustained damages, including loss of earnings
for hours of overtime worked on behalf of Defendants in an amount to be established at trial,
prejudgment interest, and costs and attorneys’ fees, pursuant to statute and other applicable
law.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Cal. Record-Keeping Provisions Cal. Wage Order No. 4;
Cal. Labor Code §§ 226, 1174 & 1174.5
On behalf of the California Class
71.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations in all preceding

paragraphs.
16
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73.  Defendant knowingly and intentionally failed to provide timely, accurate,
itemized wage statements including, enter alia, hours worked, to the California Class members
in accordance with Labor Code § 226(a) and the IWA Wage Orders. Such failure caused
injury to the California Class members by, among other things, impeding them from knowing
the amount of hours worked and the total wages to which they are and were entitled. At ail
times relevant herein, Defendant has failed to maintain complete and accurate records of hours
worked by the California Class members are required under Labor Code § 1174(d).

74.  The California Class members are entitled to and seek injunctive relief requiring
Defendant to comply with Labor Code §§ 226(a) and 1174(d), and further seek the amount
provided under Labor Code §§ 226(e) and 1174.5, including the greater of all actual damages
or fifty dollars ($50) for the initial pay period in which a violation occurs and one hundred
dollars ($100) per employee for each violation in a subsequent pay period.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Cal. Meal Period Provisions, Cal. Wage Order No. 4;
Cal. Labor Code §§ 218.5,226.7 & 512
On behalf of the California Class

75.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference all allegations in all preceding
paragraphs.

76.  Defendant has engaged in a widespread pattern, policy and practice of

violating the California Labor Code §§ 218.5, 226.7 & 512 and Wage Order No. 4-2001,

§11(a), as detailed in this Class Action Complaint.
17
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77.  The California Class members regularly work and have worked in excess of five
hour shifts without being afforded at least a half-hour meal break in which they were relieved
of all duty, as required by Labor Code §§ 226.7 and 512 and Wage Order No. 4-200] » § 11(a).

78.  As aresult of Defendants’ failure to afford proper meal periods, Defendants are
liable to the California Class members for one hour of additional pay at the regular rate of
compensation for each workday that the proper meal periods were not provided, pursuant to
California Labor Code § 226.7 and Wage Order No. 4-2001, § 11(b).

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure to Timely Pay Wages
Cal. Labor Code §§ 201, 202, 203
On behalf of the California Class

79.  Plaintiffs redlege and incorporate by reference all allegations in all preceding
paragraphs.

80.  California Labor Code §§ 201 and 202 require Defendant to pay its employees
all wages due within the time specified by law. California Labor Code § 203 provides that if
an employer willfully fails to timely pay such wages, the employer must continue to pay the
subject employees” wages until the back wages are paid in full or an action is commenced, up
to a maximum of thirty days of wages.

81.  The California Class members who ceased employment with Defendants are
entitled to unpaid compensation, but, upon information and belief, to date have not received
such compensation,

82.  More than thirty days have passed since certain California Class members left

Defendants’ employ.

18
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83.

As a consequence of Defendants’ willful conduct in not paying proper

compensation for all hours worked, the California Class members whose employment ended

during the four years preceding the filing of this Class Action Complaint are entitled to thirty

days’ wages under Labor Code § 203, together with interest thereon, and attorneys’ fees and

costs.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore, Plaintiffs on behalf of themselves and all other similarly situated Collective

Action Members and members of the Class, respectfully request that this Court grant the

following relief:

a.

Designation of this action as a collective action on behalf of the Collective
Action Members and prompt issuance of notice pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §216(b)
to all similarly situated members of an FLSA Opt-In Class, apprising them of
the pendency of this action, permitting them to assert timely FLSA claims in
this action by filing individual Consents to Sue pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §216(b)
and appointing Plaintiffs and their counsel to represent the Collective Action
members;

Certification of this action as a class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2)
and (3) on behalf of the members of the New York and California Classes and
appointing Plaintiffs and their counsel to represent the respective Classes;

An order tolling the statute of limitations;

A declaratory judgment that the practices complained of herein are unlawful

under the FL.SA, the New York Labor Laws and California Wage Laws;
19
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An injunction against the Defendants and its officers, agents, successors,
employees, representatives and any and all persons acting in concert with
Defendants, as provided by law, from engaging in each of the unlawful
practices, policies and patterns set forth herein;

An award of wages for all hours worked and overtime compensation due under
the FLSA, the New York Labor Laws and California Wage Laws;

An award of liquidated and/or punitive damages as a result of the Defendants’
willful failure to pay for all hours worked as well as overtime compensation
pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216, the New York Labor Laws and California Wage
Laws;

An award of damages arising out of the non-payment of wages, arising out of
the FLSA, the New York Labor Laws and the California Wage Laws;

An award of prejudgment and post-judgment interest;

An award of costs and expenses of this action together with reasonable
attorneys’ and expert fees; and

Such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY

Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiffs

demand a trial by jury on all questions of fact raised by the complaint.

Dated: New York, New York

July 10, 2009

PELTON & ASSOCIATES PC
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By:z{fz

Brent E. Pelton (BP 1055)

Attorney for Plaintiffs, Individually, and

on Behalf of All Other Persons Similarly Situated
111 Broadway, Suite 901

New York, New York 10006

Telephone: (212) 385-9700

Facsimile: (212) 385-0800
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April 14, 2009
Page 6

CONSENT TO BECOME PARTY PLAINTIFF

By my signature beiow, | hereby authorize the fillng and prosecution of claims in my name and on my bshalf to contest tha .
failure of T-i_-‘lobile and/or its owners and affiliales to pay me overiime wages as required under stats anc/or federal law, and

represontative plainliff in this action o make declsions on behalf of all other plaintifs conceming the liigation, the mathod

and manner of conducting this Itigation, the entering of an agreement with Plaintiff's counsel conceming attomneys’ fees and
costs, and &l other matters pertaining 1o this lawsuit,

14~ :
% _Ol;/atg of —MPnntéﬁul‘Qame
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June 16, 2009
Page 6

CONSENT TO BECOME PARTY PLAINTIFF

By my signature below, | hereby authorize the flling and proseculion of clalms. in my name and on my behalf to contest the
faiture of T-Mobile and/or its owners and affiliates {o pay me overtime wages as required under state and/or federal law, and
also authorize the filing of this consent in the action(s) challenging such conduct. | authorize being named as the
representative piaintiff in this action to make decisions on behall of all other plaintiffs concerning the litigation, the method
and manner of conducting this litigation, the entering of an agreament with Plaintif"'s counsel concerning attomeys’ fees and
costs, and all other matters pertaining fo this tawsuit.

Signature Date Printed Name
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June 10, 2009
Page 6

CONSENT TO BECOME PARTY PLAINTIFF

By my signature below, | heraby authorize the fiing and prosecuiion of claims in my name and on my behalf to contst the
fallure of T-Mobile and/or its owners andﬂmmmymwmmnumdmmmmtmm law, and
auowﬂnﬂzemuﬂngofmcnmntinthoacﬂon(s)daaﬂumlngluehmm ) authorize being named as the
representative plaintiff in this action to make declsions on behalf of all other plaintiffs concerning the liigation, the method
and manner of conducting this litigation, the entering of an agreement with Plaintiff's counsa! conceming atiorneys’ fess and
costs, and all other matiers partalning (o this lawsuit

6/10/09 James Gipson
Signature Date Printed Name




